M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 17, 2002
4:04 PM

TAPES

SFC-02 # 63, Side
SFC 02 # 63, Side
SFC 02 # 64, Side
SFC 02 # 64, Side
SFC 02 # 65, Side

>W>r>w>

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Dave Donl ey convened the nmeeting at approxinmately 4:04 PM
PRESENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-chair
Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senator Loren Lenan

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Donal d O son

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Senator Lyda G een

Also Attending: Testifiers are listed in the body of the m nutes
in the order they testified.

SUMVARY | NFORVATI ON

HB 403- APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS
SB 289- APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS
HB 404- APPROP: MENTAL HEALTH BUDGET

SB 288- APPROP: MENTAL HEALTH BUDGET

The Committee heard public testinony from the Legislative
Information O fices in Dillingham Bethel, Sitka, Petersburg,
d ennal | en, Kodi ak, Kenai, Cordova, Valdez, Honmer, Seward and
Anchor age.

#HB 403
#SB 289

SFC- 02 (1) 04/ 17/ 02



#HB404
#SB288

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 403(FIN am(brf sup nmaj fld)(efd fld)
"An Act meking appropriations for the operating and | oan
program expenses of state governnent, for certain prograns,
and to capitalize funds."

SENATE BI LL NO. 289

"An Act meking appropriations for the operating and | oan
program expenses of state governnent, for certain prograns,
and to capitalize funds; making appropriations under art. |X
sec. 17(c), Constitution of the State of Alaska, from the
constitutional budget reserve fund; and providing for an
effective date."

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 404(FIN)

"An Act nmaking appropriations for the operating and capital
expenses of the state's integrated conprehensive nental health
program and providing for an effective date."

SENATE BI LL NO. 288

"An Act nmaking appropriations for the operating and capital
expenses of the state's integrated conprehensive nental health
program and providing for an effective date."

PATRI CI A SEYBERG, from Dillingham testified in Juneau about the
effects of the proposed budget reductions to Energency Medi cal
Services (EMS) in rural areas. She detailed the services provided.

Senat or Hof fman asked if the seven EMS regions cover the entire
state.

Ms. Seyberg affirmned.

MAKO HAGGERTY, Chair, Kachemak Bay Parks Board testified via
tel econference fromHomer to request funding for state parks at the
hi ghest level. Parks are a destination, he asserted and the
condition of parks leaves a lasting inpression on visitors. He
stressed that an entire econom c sector depends on parKks.

JOSH PERRY testified via teleconference from Honer that he
volunteers for the State parks system He stressed the inportance
of parks to visitors and residents. He urged the State to commt to
i nvesting in parks.

JOSHUA DUFFUS, Enpl oyee, Division of Parks and Qutdoor Recreation,

SFC- 02 (2) 04/ 17/ 02



Departnment of Natural Resources, testified via tel econference from
Honer to urge support for state park funding, as reductions would
be a “backward step.” He stated inprovenents to parks woul d enhance
t hem

KATHEE KIEFER, volunteer for State parks, testified via
tel econference fromHoner to urge the Commttee to not reduce State
par k fundi ng.

LI SA RUOFF testified via tel econference fromHoner, to request the
Comm ttee add funding instead of decrease funding for the State
par ks budget .

JENNI FER REI NHART testified via tel econference from Honmer and urged
a general fund increase for the University of Al aska for economc
benefits.

ROGER MCCAMPBELL, Park Ranger, Division of Parks and Qutdoor
Recreation, Departnent of Natural Resources, testified via
tel econference fromHonmer to voice that the State park systemis an
“incredibly efficient system” He asked the Commttee to restore
t he budget for State parks.

Senat or Leman stated that the Senate Finance Conmittee substitute
restores half of the anount reduced by the House of
Representatives. He stressed that efforts are continuing to address
the park system budget.

JOEY EASEMAN, college student, testified via teleconference from
Honer and urged full funding for the University of Al aska to allow
people to get an education to allow them to becone assets rather
than burdens to the State.

KEI TH |1 VERSON, | odge owner, testified via tel econference from Homer
that the trail systens are becom ng nore popul ar and stressed that
eco-tourismis a benefit.

MARI LYN ROSENE, testified via teleconference fromDillingham to
enphasi ze that staff turnover is very high in the |ocal school. She
urged adequate funding for schools to support recruitnent and
retenti on of enpl oyees.

DOROTHY LARSON, Tribal Adm nistrator, testified via tel econference
from Dillingham to urge no decreases in funding for alcohol and
drug prograns as this would result in reductions or closure of
prograns in treatnment facilities.

DEANNA HARDI N, Enployee, Head Start program testified via

SFC- 02 (3) 04/ 17/ 02



tel econference from Dillingham and urged full funding for rura
uni versity canpuses, as teaching certificates are required for Head
Start teachers. She cited the preferential for local hiring.

CRI STY WLLER TILDEN testified via teleconference fromDi|l|ingham
to urge support for treatnent prograns. She noted they have been
flat funded for 14 years; however, costs have increased and the
program has recei ved outside support. She stressed this funding is
limted and that a 20 percent reduction in grant incone would
result in closure of the program She stressed that residents of
the area are willing to contribute to the State’'s treasury in the
form of an incone tax.

JENNI FER JONES- MOLI NA, teacher, testified via tel econference from
Dillingham to inform the Commttee that as a teacher she fills
several roles: teacher, social worker, and cl assroom custodi an. She
stressed she needs training on how to inplenent State nandated
prograns. She urged the Legislature to put the State's children
first and increase funding for schools.

Co-Chair Donley cited the National Education Association 1999
gover ni ng sour cebook, in noting that Al aska ranks very high in the
per capita amount of funds it contributes to education.

PEARL STRUB, parent, representative of an agency assisting people
to get enploynent, and board menber of UA canpus testified via
tel econference from Dillingham and urged full funding of the
University of Alaska budget. She listed the nunber of degrees
awarded at the Bristol Bay Canpus.

DON FORD, parent and school board nenber, testified via

tel econference from Dillingham and stated that education is a
resource. He asserted that costs are increasing at the sanme tine
|l ocal conmunities are “wllingly” <contributing nore toward

educati on expenses. He spoke to the limted percentage of the State
budget appropriated to educati on.

Co-Chair Donley clarified that the 14 percent of total state
funding for education referenced by the witness is “distorted”. He
expl ained that the total budget includes a “nmassive influx” of over
one billing dollars in federal funding for highways. He expressed
that the commtnent to funding education in Al aska has not
di m ni shed and that over the past ten years, the Legislature has
increased its investnent of general funds from 28 percent to 34
percent for K — 12 education.

ANNE FRITZE, University of Alaska student, testified via
tel econference from Dillingham to encourage full funding support

SFC- 02 (4) 04/ 17/ 02



for the local university canpus. She infornmed she is financially
unable to nove her famly to Fairbanks or Anchorage where the najor
canmpuses are |located, and that the Dillingham canpus allows her to
obtain an education while maintaining full-tinme enploynent.

SONNY LEVEQUE, Student, University of Alaska, testified via
tel econference from Dillingham to remnd the Conmttee that
universities are not businesses designed to earn a profit but that
provi ding an education benefits the econony. He spoke of student
housing and the ability for students in rural areas to remain in
their own honmes while attending schools in their community. He al so
supported fundi ng al cohol and nental illness treatnment efforts.

TI NA BARGER, Program Monitor, SAFE, testified via tel econference
from D |Ilingham about the inportance of continuing this donestic
vi ol ence program serving the Bristol Bay Region. She highlighted
the activities of the “sister” organization

SFC 02 # 63, Side B 04:52 PM

NELS ANDERSON, JR., Menber, Bristol Bay Canpus Council, testified
via teleconference fromD |linghamto thank the Legislature for the
support of the past few years. He spoke of the fishing disasters
that occurred in the last two years and the difficulty of fishernen
in obtaining alternate enpl oynent. He urged full support of rural
uni versity campuses, as they pronote econonic devel opnent.

DI XI E LANDENBURCGER, Team Leader, Seaview Comrunity Services,
testified via teleconference from Seward to request the Cormmittee
no reduce funding for substance abuse treatnent prograns. She
supported the proposed alcohol tax and encouraged additional
revenue sources rather than reduced services.

MELANI E WEEMS, testified via tel econference from Seward to request
support for al cohol and substance abuse treatnent services.

JANET BUCHANAN testified via teleconference from Seward and read a
statenent from Randy Crystal, a resident in a substance abuse
treatnent program She quoted that he is a 48-year old man who
suffers from depression and relayed his need for treatnment to
resune being a productive nmenber of society.

ANGUS KUNZ testified via teleconference from Seward about his
illness and the need for treatnent.

SUNG KIM LI NDER testified via tel econference from Seward on behal f

SFC- 02 (5) 04/ 17/ 02



of the local nental health clinic and other patients of that
clinic. He told of his mental illness.

DOUG DI SORCI E, Enpl oyee, Prince WIIliam Sound Community Coll ege,
testified via tel econference from Val dez about the independently
accredited school that is a part of the University of Al aska
system He requested continued funding for the University and he
| isted nanes of students who support funding the University of
Al aska.

JANI CE JOHNSON testified via teleconference from Valdez to fully
support funding for the University of Al aska. She believed it is
the responsibility of the University to contribute to Al aska's
wor kf orce. She stressed the need for diversity in the State’s
education system which rural canpuses play a vital part.

CORRI NE ERI CKSON- ENVOY, Sal vation Arny, and "ot her social service
agencies", testified via tel econference from Cordova about the need
for funding alcohol and substance abuse treatnent prograns. She
stated this is inportant to avoid continued prison grow h.

Nl CHOLE  SONGER, Fam |y Resour ce Cent er, testified Vi a
tel econference from Cordova in opposition to funding reductions.
She spoke of the consequences of a 20 percent funding reduction on
many agencies particularly in rural |ocations.

DENNY WEATHERS testified via teleconference from Cordova to her
approval of the Legislature’ s attenpt to bal ance the State budget.
She stated that Al aska has a republic formof governnent, “one in
which the power and sovereignty are vested in the people and
exercised by the people, either directly or through their
representatives chosen by the people to whom the powers are
specifically delegated.” She opined that “God created nman, nman
created the constitution and the constitution created governnent”
whi ch subsequently created “the public service.” She stressed that
many government functions are not nandated and that governnent
agenci es have “usurped the powers that rightfully belong to the
people.” She asserted nany State prograns should have further
budget reductions. She quoted Thonmas Jefferson warni ng about the
consequences of a |arge government.

JAMES FlI SHER, Sol dotna resident, testified via teleconference from
Kenai and asked if Conmttee nenbers could “l ook the Al aska public
in the eye to explain how you failed to institute reasonable
financial support for their essential State services.” He warned
that even limted budget reductions would result in the reduced
health and safety of all Al askans. He asked how budget reductions
woul d inprove the life of Al askans.

SFC- 02 (6) 04/ 17/ 02



ROSEMARY REEDER, Soldotna Community Schools, testified via
tel econference from Kenai that the proposed budget reductions to
the community schools prograns woul d be detrinmental. She inforned
this funding allows the program to operate facilities and also
| everage additional funds.

GRACE MERKES, Head Start Program testified via teleconference from
Kenai, thanked the Senate for their support and stressed the
i nportance of the Head Start Program for |owincone children. She
stated the federal governnent funds the programat 80 percent and
the State funds it at 20 percent.

ROSEMARY BUSHON, Head Start, testified via teleconference from
Kenai to urge funding for the Head Start program She shared the
positive results she has seen in the children in the program She
stated that teacher salaries are low and this needs to be
addr essed.

Senator W1 ken asked Ms. Reeder if she was aware the Senate Fi nance
conm ttee substitute allocates $300,000 to the comunity schoo
program al t hough the House of Representatives had allocated no
funds for this program

Ms. Reeder had understood the House of Representatives approved
fundi ng $500,000 and the Senate Finance Committee reduced the
amount to $300, 000.

Senator Wl ken clarified that the House of Representatives approved
a $500,000 wunallocated budget reduction to the Departnment of
Educati on and Early Devel opnent, which the Departnent testified it
intended to take fromthe Community Schools program | eaving that
program w th zero funding.

MARJORI E J. HAYES, Al aska Conmm ssion on Aging, Mental & Persona
Health, testified via teleconference from Kenai and asked for
funding for nental health and parks prograns.

JASON ELSON, retired Fire Chief, Gty of Kenai; President, Kenai
Peninsula Fire Chiefs Association; Mnber, Al aska Fire Chiefs
Association; and Chair, Board of Directors, Southern Region
Ener gency Medical Services Council, testified via tel econference
from Kenai to the proposed funding reductions to the State’s EMS
grant program He stated the reductions would affect the services
that fire departnents are able to provide, notably in sone
comunities located along the road system He pointed out that
federal funds are utilized to operate the Code Blue program
al though State matching funds are required.

SFC- 02 (7) 04/ 17/ 02



KATI E STAFFORD, Supervisor, Division of Famly and Youth Servi ces,
and Menber, National Association of Social Wrkers, testified via
tel econference from Kenai, and spoke to children’s needs in the
community as the result of reduced funding for drug and al coho

treatment program as well as for nental health progranms. She
enphasi zed that nore famlies would feel the effects of these
reductions.

JAMES SHILL, Executive Director, Central Peninsula Counseling
Services, testified via tel econference from Kenai regardi ng fundi ng
for nental health progranms. He stated the proposed funding |evels
woul d affect many people who could not otherwi se afford treatnent.

Senator G een asked which specific nental health program the
W tness was testifying to.

M. Shill responded that the “general nental health” program
funding has been reduced “in alnost every budget cycle”. He
expressed this inpacts the “working class” sector that does not
have ot her health insurance coverage.

Senator Geen countered that the Senate Finance conmmttee
substitute proposed budget reflects funding increases for all
nmental health services conpared to the budget approved by the House
of Representatives.

M. Shill stressed that the budgets of the past three fiscal years
have been reduced for general nental health services and that the
current fundi ng proposal contains a three-percent reduction from
t he previous year.

Senator Green pointed out a $150,000 finding increase fromFY 02 to
services for the chronic nentally ill

M. Shill clarified that services for people who are enpl oyed and
therefore do not qualify for Medicaid are the ones affected by the
budget reductions. He listed contractors to the petrol eumindustry
and fishing guides and commercial fishers as exanples. He agreed
that the chronically nmentally ill and children have not been
I npact ed.

Senator Green clarified the Senate Finance conmttee substitute
provi des nore funding than the appropriation adopted by the House
of Representatives.

Senator WArd requested witten docunentation fromthe w tness on
the inmpacts of the budget reductions.

SFC- 02 (8) 04/ 17/ 02



DON ROBERTS JR testified via tel econference from Kodi ak that the
proposed budget as well as SB 340 “nake a nockery of what a
denocracy is or what at |east a denocracy ought to be: everybody
contributing what they can.” He asserted that the proposed budget
is the result of the “well-to-do” attenpting to maintain “their
privileged status on the backs of the poor and disabled.” He
furthered that, “cutting equally is not the same as cutting
fairly.”

PAT HOLMES testified via tel econference from Kodi ak in support of
the Senate Majority’ s past efforts to reduce the budget. He opi ned,
“you’ve kind of got things down to the bone” and that revenue
i ncreases should now be considered. He supported a State incone
tax, a head tax for school funding, and a “nodest” sal es tax.

EVERETT STONE testified via tel econference from Kodi ak to protest
the elimnation of food sanitation inspection positions. He told of
an out break of contam nation at a | ocal seafood processing plant.
He warned that the elimnation of this position would damage the
seaf ood industry's reputation.

Senator Leman clarified the Senate Finance Commttee proposal does
not elimnate this position. He asserted the Senate agrees that
sanitation is inportant.

DAVE JONES, Director of Finance, Kodiak School District testified
via teleconference from Kodiak to thank the Conmttee for the
i ncreased funding for pupil transportation and | earning opportunity
grants. He cautioned, however, that the sane funding is not
"mai nt enance", as costs increase. He told of the difficulties in
attracting quality teachers to the district.

PAT CARLSON, Manager, Kodiak |Island Borough, testified via
tel econference from Kodi ak that he recogni zed the difficulties of
the Conmttee in funding progranms. He asserted the permanent fund
was intended for “a rainy day” and encouraged the Commttee to
devel op a fiscal plan, focusing on fee-based services. He supported
an inconme tax as a nethod to offset the costs of education.

SFC 02 # 64, Side A 05:40 PM

M. Carlson comented that a popul ati on-based revenue stream is
necessary to offset the cost of education.

CARCLYN FLOYD, Mayor, City of Kodiak, testified via tel econference

SFC- 02 (9) 04/ 17/ 02



from Kodiak to address three itens. She encouraged support of
revenue sharing, warning that any reduction would harm the | ocal
governnment in that it would require additional |ocal taxes. She
supported legislation to expand comunity jails, describing the
conditions of the old community jail located in Kodiak and its
limted ability to address juvenile offenders. She al so supported
funding the Marine H ghway System asserting this is the highway
for many coastal conmunities.

PAT BRANSON, Assenbly Menber, Executive Director, Senior Citizens
of Kodi ak, as well as a nenber of several non-profit organizations,
testified via tel econference from Kodi ak about her concerns about
the quality of life in Al aska that would be reduced if prograns
were not fully funded. She spoke of the need for adequate food
sanitation in the kitchen facilities utilized by the senior citizen
or gani zati on.

Senator Leman reiterated that the Senate Finance conmttee
substitute restored nost of the necessary funding for food
sanitation operations and would continue to restore necessary
f unds.

Ms. Branson then requested increased funding for the education
foundati on funding formul a.

MKE MLLIGAN testified via teleconference from Kodiak about
i ncreased health care costs as they relate to veterans, inmates and
all state agencies. He asserted he does not have health insurance
and that he depends on his permanent fund dividend to cover his
health care expenses as well as to pay his property taxes. He
supported new revenues and sone budget reductions.

GABRI ELLE LEDOUX, Mayor, Kodiak |sland Borough, testified via
tel econference from Kodi ak to encourage the Conmttee to devel op a
| ong-term fiscal plan. She warned of the consequences to |ocal
communities if this is not done.

BETTY WALTERS, Superintendent, Kodiak Island School District,
testified via teleconference from Kodi ak to request the Committee
consider the essential services across the State, primrily
educati on.

CARL BERCGER, Member , Bet hel Cty Council, testified via
tel econference from Bethel on his own behalf. He asked why only
budget reductions are being considered, such as funding for State
par ks, public broadcasting, and international trade. He stressed
that revenue sources nust be considered. He asked the Senate
Majority to participate in efforts to create a long-term fisca

SFC- 02 (10) 04/ 17/ 02



pl an. He asserted that the State incone tax should be reinstated.

BOB MEDI NGER, University of Al aska graduate, Director, University
of Al aska- Fai r banks, Kuskokwi m Canpus, testified via tel econference
from Bethel that fully funding the University of Al aska would
provide qualified workers for health care and ot her needed fi el ds.

Bl NG SANTAMOUR, Former Student, Al ummi, Chair, Advisory Council
University of Al aska-Fairbanks, Kuskokwi m Canpus, testified via
tel econference from Bethel about the inportance of funding this
facility. She stressed that an educated public should be
consi der ed.

ALEXANDRI A MORTENSQON, Student, University of Al aska-Fairbanks,
Kuskokwi m Canpus, testified via teleconference from Bethel in
support of funding rural university canmpuses. She stressed that
education provides tools to build stronger conmunities.

KEN ROBERSON, Vi ce-Chair, Copper River EMS Council, testified via
tel econference from d ennal | en about the EMS services the counci
provides and the area it covers. He stated the anmpunt of funding
has decreased over the last 15 years and has never increased. He
remarked that this has resulted in the need to charge higher rates
for services and to provide |lower quality patient care.

DAVE LEMAI RE, Copper River EMS, testified via tel econference from
Aennallen to reiterate the previous witness. He listed the revenue
generated fromthe 911 tax and the increased equi pnent costs.

MARNI E GRAHAM testified via teleconference from Gennallen to
address funding for public education. She asserted that Quality
Schools initiatives and the No Child Left Behind Act are only as
good as the funding to inplement them She told of the poor
conditions of the school facility and inforned that her salary in
an education facility is lower than it was when she was hired
despite increnental increases and pay raises, because they do not
keep pace with inflation.

MARI LYN MENI SH MEUCCI testified via tel econference from Petersburg
that the legislators are in Juneau for the benefit of Al aska. She
asserted that the Legislature is reducing funding for “everything
that hel ps our State function and be a place that people want to
live in and raise a famly.” She stressed that |egislators nust
beconme focused and develop a |long-termfiscal plan. She opposed a
sales tax because Petersburg has a local sales tax, and she
supported an i ncone tax.

Bl LL TREMBLEY, Menber, City Council, testified via tel econference

SFC- 02 (11) 04/ 17/ 02



from Petersburg that although the Legislature has net budget
reductions, it is time to restore funding. He stated that it is
time for an incone tax. He conpared the revenue generated by tinber
activities to the higher amounts generated by tourism He did not
support a statew de sal es tax.

PAUL ANDERSON, President, Thomas Bay Power, and past candi date for
State Senate, testified via tel econference from Petersburg that "it
has been raining for the past seven years". He urged the Commttee
not hanper the future governor and admi nistration. He stated that
if the permanent fund nust be utilized, it should be done.

MARLYS TEDI N, Menber, State Parks Advisory Board, testified via
tel econference from Sitka about the location of the State parks in
the Sitka area along the road system She stated these parks coul d
not be closed and are heavily used by tourists and that the boat
ranps are needed for search and rescue operations. She supported a
state incone tax.

SCOTT MCADAMS testified via teleconference from Sitka to express
support for maintaining and expandi ng soci al service agencies. He
stated these agencies provide inportant services as well as provide
living wages to enpl oyees.

AT EASE 6: 14 PM/ 6:57 PM

JAN MACCLARENCE, Al aska Mental Health Board and Executive Director
Abused Wnen’s Aid in Crisis, testified via teleconference from
Anchorage on behalf of the nental health community and the
Anchorage social services comunity. She detailed the services
provi ded by these organi zations and the consequences of funding
reducti ons.

PETER MACKSEY, Community Schools testified via tel econference from
Anchorage that he did not approve of the proposed funding
reductions. He suggested reduci ng the budgets of the A aska Science
and Technol ogy Foundati on and the Al aska I ndustrial Devel opnent and
Export Authority, offering land sales and reusing equipnment in
rural communities rather than purchasi ng new.

Co-Chair Donley commented that he related to the wtness’'s
concerns.

JOAN FI SHER, Executive Director, Anchorage Health Center, testified
via teleconference from Anchorage that she understood the
difficulties in bal ancing the budget as she does that in her job as
wel | as the people the organi zation serves do in their own |ives.

SFC- 02 (12) 04/ 17/ 02



RICH SEWELL, Board Menber, Alumi Association, University of
Al aska- Anchorage, testified via tel econference from Anchorage to
support full funding. He appreciated the increased funding in the
past several years after many years of “neglect”. He infornmed of
the nunber of alumi residing in Co-Chair Donley’'s election
district.

CHERI E NORTHON, Professor, School of Engineering, University of
Al aska- Anchorage, testified via tel econference from Anchorage about
the need for an addition faculty position to allow students to
obtain a certificate in the newy instituted Geographic Information
Systens programin one year rather than two or nore years.

SI STER MOREEN MCPORTLAND, Adm ssions Advocate, Catholic Soci al
Services and Interim Director, St. Francis House, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage and described the services the
organi zation provides to allow recipients to take control of their
lives. She stated that the vol unteer coordinator position is funded
through this grant and that the center enploys three State
enpl oyees with the remai nder of the work conducted by vol unteers.

SARA JACKSON, Manager, St. Francis House, Catholic Social Services,
testified via teleconference from Anchorage that she appreciated
the Conmittee has reinstated nost funding for human services
managenent grants.

SFC 02 # 64, Side B 07:11 PM

Ms. Jackson continued that she favors the establishnent of a State
i ncone tax.

JOHN RILES, Physician Assistant, Anchorage Neighborhood Health
Center, testified via teleconference from Anchorage in favor of
full funding of Chronic and Acute Medical Assistance (CAMA)
program He listed the ailnments the patients have who are served by
this program and the inportance of receiving nedication.

PH LI P KAUFMAN, Social Wrker, Division of Famly and Youth
Services, testified via teleconference from Anchorage to stress
that the high casel oads harm children and told of the delays of
providing the necessary services. He stressed the inportance of
treatment of children remaining in their hones, but pointed out
that if counselors are unavailable, the child nust be renoved. He
stated that funds woul d be better spent for these prograns than for
new trucks and equi pnent.

SFC- 02 (13) 04/ 17/ 02



ROBI N KORNFI ELD, Board Menber, Al aska Public Broadcasting, and
Enpl oyee, NANA Regi onal Corporation, testified via tel econference
from Anchorage about the job |osses that budget reductions would
have on public broadcasti ng.

MARK WOLBERS, University of Al aska-Anchorage, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage that the University is beginning to
neet its faculty needs. He cited the US News and Wrld Report
indicating that the University of Al aska-Anchorage enpl oys 56 ful
time faculty positions, which he asserted is “enbarrassing”.

LEI GH CARRI GAN, not her of six, and Board Menber, Infant Learning
Prograni Prograns for Infants and Children, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage about the federal funding that woul d
be lost wi thout an adequate state appropriation. She told of her
son’s hearing disabilities and the positive results of his
participation in the prograns.

TI M HUNTERBERCGER, Faculty Menber, University of Al aska-Anchorage
testified via tel econference from Anchorage to request full funding
of the University. He noted the House of Representatives approved
funding at the previous year level, and that it has been suggested
that flat funding is adequate. However, he stressed expenses have
risen and that prograns nust be expanded.

KATHY HARRI SON, |nfant Learning Program Prograns for Infants and
Children, testified via teleconference from Anchorage about the
program and to urge the Conmittee to not approve the $1 nmllion
reduction to the program as proposed. She warned that if the
program becones one based on incone needs, federal funds would be
| ost. She stressed that providing these services while children are
young woul d save noney in the long term

MERRI LEE HARRELL, 1997 Honors G aduate, University of Al aska-
Anchorage testified via tel econference from Anchorage that she has
recei ved her |aw degree and is practicing in Anchorage. She stated
the State needs qualified workers such as engineers and even
politicians. She stressed that when Al askan students are sent
Qutside to be educated, noney is sent out as well and that many
former residents do not return.

EVA STANLEY, Disabled Al askan, testified via tel econference from
Anchorage that she would often go hungry if not for the prograns
provi ded by the Catholic Social Services.

GEORGE SM TH, Di sabl ed Al askan, testified via tel econference from

Anchor age about his reliance on Catholic Social Services prograns
and the limted resources avail abl e through state-run prograns.

SFC- 02 (14) 04/ 17/ 02



JOELLE HALL, Al askans for Tobacco Free Kids, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage to thank the Legislature for creating
the Tobacco Use Education and Cessation Fund. She rem nded the
Committee of the commtnent to allocate 20 percent of Al aska's
t obacco settlenent incone to this program She asked this continue
to occur. She spoke to the success and inportance of tobacco
cessation progranms. She requested to be taxed on her incone so she
coul d deduct that anount from her federal incone taxes.

ED EARNHART testified via tel econference from Anchorage that sone
| egislators are “nean spirited” in attitudes toward the poor and
those who are incarcerated. He suggested that instead the
| egi sl ature shoul d devel op ot her revenue sources. He supported an
inconme tax applied to high-incone earners. He conplained about
| ongevity bonuses paid to weal thier ol der Al askans.

LUKE SULLI VAN, 15 years old, Menber, Al aska Cancer Society, Youth
Coalition, testified via teleconference from Anchorage about the
m sperceptions of teenagers who snpbke. He asserted these young
people are not always from “bad famlies” and are poor.

BRI TTNEY HUFF, Al aska Cancer Society, testified via tel econference
from Anchorage to stress the peer pressure at her school to snoke.
She requested that 20 percent of tobacco settlenment funds be
al l ocated to snoking cessation and prevention prograns.

CHRI STINE STURGA S testified via tel econference from Anchorage t hat
she works in the child protection field. She was encouraged that
t he proposed funding reductions are | ess than approved by the House
of Representatives, but she urged that services could not be cut.
She warned of the consequences.

MYRA  CASEY, 22-year Anchor age Resi dent , testified Vi a
tel econference from Anchorage that she cane to the State as a
single parent and that her grown children are successful in part
because she was able to receive many services. She stressed that
many adults in the correction system were abused or negl ected as
children. She stated that society owes children the right to grow
up in healthy environnment.

TRAVI S ERICKSON testified via tel econference from Anchorage that he
has been involved in child protection services for nany years. He
told of his view of social workers as a tired overworked woman with
one arm tied behind her back making her best effort to assist
chil dren.

Senator Green stressed the Senate Finance conmttee substitute

SFC- 02 (15) 04/ 17/ 02



i ncludes funding for every social worker position as requested by
the Governor as well as $4 mllion nore than the anount approved by
t he House of Representatives. She furthered that funding for famly
and youth services has increased $4 since the previous year.

M. Erickson clarified that he acknow edged and appreci ated that no
fundi ng reducti on woul d be made to social worker positions and to
t he Bal | oon Project.

Senator Geen and M. Erickson continued debating the matter of
funding for famly preservation and substance abuse treatnent.

MARI LYN BORELL testified via teleconference from Anchorage to
encourage the Commttee to fully fund the University of Al aska. She
stated this is necessary for those students who could not afford to
attend school out of State. She added those who could afford out of
state tuitions also nmust be considered to entice themto attend
col l ege in Al aska.

PATRI CK LUBY, Anerican Association of Retired People (AARP),
testified via teleconference from Anchorage to urge continued
support of the food safety program in the Departnent of
Envi ronnental Conservation. He told of the food services provided
for elderly residents, which nmust be inspected to qualify for
federal funding.

Co-Chair Donley infornmed this itemhad been sufficiently funded. He
noted that in all other states, food inspections is function of
| ocal governnents and asked if wi tness agreed this should be done
| ocal ly.

M. Luby stressed he is not an expert in the matter; however he
surmsed if the duties were transferred, the argunment woul d be nmade
that the State was placing an unfunded nandate on |ocal
gover nnment s.

ERI CA JOSELY, Social W rker, testified via teleconference from
Anchorage to thank the Commttee for restoring funding for social
wor kers. She was concerned with lack of a long-termfiscal plan and
encouraged such a plan rather than continued budget reductions
because they woul d affect children.

DON VALESKO, Business Manager, Public Enpl oyees Union, testified
via tel econference from Anchorage that he is optimstic about the
future of the State. He referenced several testifiers requesting
that funding not be reduced for the progranms they represent, yet
al so asserted they are willing to contribute to the State’s
operating expenses. He charged that the |egislature nust “get in
tune with public’'s nessage” and develop a plan for economc

SFC- 02 (16) 04/ 17/ 02



devel opnent .

STEVE BYE, Supervisor, Cook Inlet Tribal Council, welfare to work
program testified via tel econference from Anchorage about his
i nvol venent in the program He stated the change of phil osophy has
reduced the casel oad of public assistance counsel ors, but stressed
further efforts are necessary. He told of the famlies still trying
to find work, often conplicated by addictions. He shared his
concern regarding the elimnation of the hold harm ess provision of
the permanent fund dividend program in neeting incone
qualifications for public assistance benefits.

Co-Chair Donley clarified that the permanent fund dividend is not
constitutionally mandat ed.

EM LY NENQON, American Cancer Society, testified via tel econference
from Anchorage to thank | egislature for creating the Tobacco Youth
Education and Cessation fund. She asserted that tobacco use remains
t he nunber one cause of preventable death in Al aska.

El LEEN THOWSON, 1994 G aduate, and Board Menber, Al umi
Associ ati on, University of Alaska-Anchorage, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage to urge fully funding the University.
She told of her two children who would attend the University of
Al aska.

KAREN  HODGE, “Ment al Il'l ness Consuner”, testified Vi a
tel econference from Anchorage about her history in overcom ng her
illness.

SFC 02 # 65, Side A 07:59 PM

Ms. Hodge continued that the proposed funding |level for the Al aska
Mental Health Board would require the Board to hold one |ess
neeti ng each year and she spoke to the inportance to her of each
nmeet i ng.

BONNY HEADLY, Head Start, University of Al aska-Anchorage, testified
via teleconference from Anchorage to support education on “both
ends of the spectrunf in both early devel opnent and secondary
education. She told of the difficulties of teaching with [imted
resour ces.

TRACY ELLSWORTH, voter, testified via tel econference from Anchorage
about brain research as it relates to early education. She told of
the benefits of healthy environnments for young children, giving
exanpl es of specific children.

SFC- 02 (17) 04/ 17/ 02



ROCKEY PLOTNIK, Chair Elect, Alaska Tobacco Control Alliance,
testified via teleconference from Anchorage about the statew de
organi zati on’s conprehensive plan was budgeted at $8.1 mllion. She
stated that the 20 percent of tobacco settlenent funds deposited to
t he Tobacco Use Education and Cessati on Fund would be $6.6 mllion.
She urged the Conmttee maintain this |evel of funding.

BRENDA NEWBURN testified via teleconference from Anchorage about
the rel ati onship between children and parents. She noted parent hood
does not conme with a manual. She told of a bunper sticker “children
are people too”.

DAVE LANDERD, Lifelong Al askan, and snmall business owner, testified
via tel econference from Anchorage that he has “no ax to grind’” as a
soci al services representative. However, he asserted "I think what
you' re doing is just wong.” He stated he is willing to pay incone
taxes to support social services. He warned of the consequences of
not providing these services expressing, “you’re going to turn this
State into the noral equivalent of a car up on bl ocks.”

SUSAN TRAPP, testified via teleconference from Anchorage to warn if
budget reductions are made to substance abuse treatnent and nental
heal th services the consequences would be realized in correctional
and public safety aspects. She stated she had been arrested 83
tinmes.

NANCY BUSHEY, director of a residential substance abuse treatnent
center, testified via teleconference from Anchorage about her
concerns to reductions to substance abuse treatnent prograns.

JOHN PENDREY, treatnent coordinator at the sane residential
subst ance abuse treatnent center, and President, Al aska Chem ca
Dependency Counselors Association, testified via tel econference
from Anchorage that chem cal dependency is a famly di sease.

ELAI NE DAHLGREN, Director, Volunteers of America, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage that the organization provides
subst ance abuse treatnent to youth. She told of the trend of
i ncreased al cohol and drug dependency and warned that not treating
addi ctions would only increase this trend.

Co-Chair Donley thanked the testifiers.
Senat or Hof f man hoped the nenbers woul d renenber the testinony of

the witnesses today when considering anmendnents to the conmttee
substitute.

SFC- 02 (18) 04/ 17/ 02



Senator Geen rem nded that the “sinplest conputations” on the
increase to the Departnent of Health and Social Services budget is
$105 mllion, which she pointed out, is the anmount of the budget of
up to four other State agencies.

Co-Chair Donley noted the $105 mllion for Department of Health and
Social Services is required in a year with a projected $850 mllion
deficit. He stressed that the State budget in Alaska is 2.7 times
the national average in per capita spending, which is alnost tw ce
t he anount of the second highest state. He furthered that Al aska
has the nost “generous” entitlenent spending.

Senat or Hof f man under st ood but noted the budget increases are for
entitlement progranms in which the State has little control. He
stated that other prograns, such as substance abuse, where the
State has control, mnust be funded because of the inpact on
famlies.

ADJ QURNIVENT

Co- Chair Dave Donl ey adjourned the neeting at 08:17 PM

SFC- 02 (19) 04/ 17/ 02



